
 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Design Review Board regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk located at 825 Imperial Beach Blvd., 
Imperial Beach, CA  91932 during normal business hours. 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
SPEAKERS ARE REQUESTED TO COMPLETE A "REQUEST TO SPEAK" FORM PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF 
THE MEETING AND SUBMIT IT TO THE SECRETARY.  "REQUEST TO SPEAK" FORMS ARE LOCATED IN THE BACK 
OF THE COMMUNITY ROOM.  PERSONS ADDRESSING THE COMMITTEE ARE LIMITED TO THREE (3) MINUTES. 

 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

The City of Imperial Beach is endeavoring to be in total compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  If you require 
assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate at DRB meetings, please contact Larissa Richards at (619) 628-1356, as far in  
advance of the meeting as possible. 
 
 

  

AGENDA 
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING  
 

       THURSDAY, MAY 19, 2016 – 4:00 P.M. 
 

Council Chambers 
825 Imperial Beach Blvd. 
Imperial Beach, CA 91932 

 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
Roll Call: Nakawatase, Pamintuan, Bowman, Smith, Voronchihin 

 
2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The Public may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes on any subject within the Design Review Board’s 
jurisdiction.  In accordance with State law, the Board may not take action on an item not scheduled on the 
agenda.  If appropriate, the item will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda. 
 
3.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Design Review Board, and will 
be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items, unless a Board Member or 
member of the public requests that particular item(s) be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered 
separately.   
3.1 APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 21, 2016 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES. 
 
4.0 BUSINESS FROM THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
4.1 REPORT: HARRISON-CSANADI (APPLICANT); CONSIDERATION OF A DESIGN REVIEW CASE        

(DRC 160008) FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF TWO ATTACHED RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM UNITS 
ON A VACANT LOT WITH AN EXISTING SEAWALL AT 812 OCEAN LANE (APN 625-330-28-00).  MF 
1197. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



DRB Agenda 
MAY 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2  
 
5.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/REPORTS 

NONE.    
 

6.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 ______________/s/___________________  

LARISSA RICHARDS  
        ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

MINUTES  
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD  

 
JANUARY 21, 2016 

REGULAR MEETING 4:00 P.M. 
 

 
City Council Chambers 

825 Imperial Beach Blvd. 
Imperial Beach, CA 91932 

                                                                                                                 
1.0   CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Nakawatase called the Regular Meeting to order at 4:03 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Board Members Present: Nakawatase, Bowman, Voronchihin, Smith    
Board Members Absent: Pamintuan 
Staff Present:    Assistant City Manager Dush, City Planner Foltz, Recording 

Secretary Richards  
  
2.0  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 
          
3.0  CONSENT CALENDAR 
3.1  MOTION BY NAKAWATASE, SECOND BY BOWMAN, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF 
THE SEPTEMBER 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING, THE NOVEMBER 17, 2015 SPECIAL 
WORKSHOP  AND THE DECEMBER 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING. 
MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  
AYES:  NAKAWATASE, BOWMAN, VORONCHIHIN, SMITH  
NOES:  NONE 
ABSENT: PAMINTUAN 
ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
4.0  BUSINESS FROM THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
4.1  BOARD TRAINING DISCUSSION. 
  
Assistant City Manager Dush provided copies of Chapter 2.31 of the City’s Municipal Code to 
each of the Design Review Board (DRB) Members. He briefly stated that Chapter 2.31 
encompasses how the DRB was created and their responsibilities. He suggested that each 
member familiarize themselves with the Chapter and he proposed quarterly trainings for the 
DRB. 
 
Board Member Bowman expressed concern with using outdated guidelines from 1984. 
 
Assistant City Manager Dush stated that outdated guidelines do have a lot of good design 
elements that can be implemented into today’s designs. He also recommended that updates be 
discussed during future quarterly training meetings.  
 

DRAFT 



DRB MINUTES  
January 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 
 
City Planner Foltz spoke in support of updating the current guidelines at a future time. He 
suggested sectioning off our current guidelines according to the type of project being proposed 
and design elements that can be implemented moving forward. 
 
Chairperson Nakawatase suggested that the Board dissect the design corridors throughout the 
City and discuss which sections of the guidelines should be implemented within each individual 
area throughout the City.    
 
Assistant City Manager Dush stated that during the next meeting they can prioritize certain 
segments of the City and anticipate what areas of the City will be developed upon in the future.  
 
Board Member Smith inquired as to whether the guidelines have proven controversial or 
inadequate.   
 
City Planner Foltz stated that every project varies and the Design Review Guidelines are there 
to be referenced in order to see what could be recommended for different types of projects. 
 
Assistant City Manager Dush spoke in support of sectioning off the guidelines as they pertain to 
specific areas of the City. 
 
5.0  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/REPORTS 
Board Member Voronchihin inquired about the expected retailers at the 9th and Palm site. 
 
Assistant City Manager Dush stated that the Purchase and Sale agreement (PSA) between the 
City and the Developer requires a grocer and a certain amount of square feet of commercial 
area.  
 
6.0  ADJOURNMENT 
Chairperson Nakawatase adjourned the meeting at 4:37 p.m. 
 
Approved: 
 

 
__________________________ 
Shirley Nakawatase, DRB 
Chairperson 

Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Larissa Richards, Recording Secretary 
 
 





Design Review Board Staff Report 
Harrison-Csanadi (MF 1197) 

May 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS:  
The application, originally submitted to the City on February 3, 2016, proposes a Regular 
Coastal Permit (CP 160007), Design Review Case (DRC 160008), Site Plan Review (SPR 
160009), Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 160010), and Categorical Exemption pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines 15303 (New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) for the construction of 
two attached residential condominium units at 812 Ocean Lane (APN 625-352-23-00), which is 
located in the SMU/RO (Seacoast Mixed-Use/Residential Overlay) Zone.   
 
The project site includes one vacant parcel measuring 4,003 square feet fronting Ocean Lane 
between Date Avenue and Elm Avenue.  The properties to the north and south of the site are 
residential, the property to the east is commercial, and the beach is to the west.  An existing 
seawall is located along the western property line.  The seawall was built in 2001-2002 as a 
comprehensive shoreline protection device that would serve the residential buildings to the 
north and south that were constructed at the same time and for the future development of 812 
Ocean Lane.   
 
The proposed building orientation provides pedestrian and vehicular access off of Ocean Lane.  
Three off-street parking spaces, one two-car garage and one carport, are proposed to meet the 
minimum parking standards of one-and-a-half parking spaces per unit (Imperial Beach 
Municipal Code (IBMC) Section 19.48.035).  The driveways accessing the parking spaces 
would be comprised of permeable pavers and flagstone set in decomposed granite, which 
should enhance aesthetic appeal and drainage capabilities.     
 
Various drought tolerant shrubs, groundcover, and flatwork (flagstone in decomposed granite, 
pavers, and some concrete) would locate throughout the property.  Taller shrubs of 
approximately 6-10 feet in height would locate on the northeast and southeast property lines to 
provide a buffer between Ocean Lane and the building.   
 
The project proposes a building height of 26 feet, with a chimney and parapet walls on the 
western half of the building that would exceed the height limit.  The maximum allowable building 
height in the SMU/RO Zone is 26 feet; however, the Municipal Code allows some features to 
exceed the height limit, as follows (IBMC 19.40.020):   

 Roof structures for the housing of elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans, air 
conditioning equipment or similar equipment required to maintain and operate the 
building; 

 Fire or parapet walls required by law; 
 Skylights chimneys, smokestacks or utility towers; 
 Flagpoles, antennas, radio masts, risers and similar structures.  

 
The proposed chimney would extend approximately 6 feet above the height limit, which would 
be allowable because chimneys are specifically listed as features that may extend above the 
height limit.  The Municipal Code also states that “parapet walls required by law” may extend 
above the height limit.  A parapet is defined as “a low protective wall or railing along the edge of 
a raised structure such as a roof or balcony” (IBMC 19.04.588).  The proposed building would 
measure 26 feet in height to the top of the roof; however, because the roof would be walkable 
(roof deck), parapet walls extending 42 inches above the roof and the height limit are proposed 
as required by the Building Code for safety/protective purposes.  Staff recommends that any 
parapet walls above the maximum building height required by law consist of glass or 



Design Review Board Staff Report 
Harrison-Csanadi (MF 1197) 

May 19, 2016 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 

transparent material to minimize any potential view impacts.  As such, the applicant is proposing 
a glass parapet along the western portion of the building and a stainless steel cable guardrail for 
the remaining portions of the parapet.  
 
The applicant’s design provides varied rooflines, colors, building projections, and building 
materials such as smooth finish panels, siding, stucco, stackstone at the base of the building, 
and a stainless steel and glass parapet guardrail for a roof deck.  The design should be 
consistent with, and contribute positively to, the Ocean Lane corridor that is comprised of 
residential uses between Ocean Lane and the beach.     
 
General Plan Consistency: 
SMU/RO (Seacoast Mixed-Use Residential Overlay) Zone (the base zone is C/MU-2, Seacoast 
Commercial & Mixed Use):  The area located between Ocean Boulevard on the west, Ocean 
Lane on the east, and between Imperial Beach Boulevard on the south and Palm Avenue on the 
north is designated as the Seacoast Mixed-Use Residential Overlay Zone. The purpose of this 
transition zone is to allow for the gradual commercial expansion in an area which is generally 
used for residential purposes while preserving opportunities for the continuation of single-family 
residential uses (IBMC Section 19.27.140).  The proposed two-unit residential project meets the 
purpose and intent of the SMU/RO land use designation because residential buildings and uses 
are permitted in the SMU-RO Zone.   
 

SMU/RO STANDARDS PROVIDED/PROPOSED 
The SMU/RO Zone allows for single-family 
residential, or any use listed in Section 19.27.020 as 
permitted in the C/MU-2 Zone.  The C/MU-2 Zone 
allows for multiple-family residential dwelling units at 
a maximum density of one dwelling unit for every 
one thousand five square feet of lot area (Section 
19.27.020(A)(5)). 

The property measures 4,003 square 
feet and proposes two units at a 
density of approximately one unit per 
2,000 sq. ft. of lot area, meeting the 
density requirements.    

Yard requirements for residential uses in the 
SMU/RO Zone are as follows (Section 19.27.140): 
 1. Residential uses:  
 a. Ocean Lane: 5’ 
 b. Side yard: 5’ 
 c. Ocean Boulevard (Beach): 10’ 

  
 
 
a. Ocean Lane: 5’ 
b. Side yard: 5’ 
c. Ocean Boulevard (Beach): 10’ 

Properties within the Seacoast Residential Overlay 
Zone are subject to a reduced single-family 
residential building height of two stories or twenty-six 
feet, whichever is less (Section 19.27.070(A)(1)). 
 
 
Exceptions to the height limit as follows (Section 
19.40.020):   

A. Roof structures for the housing of elevators, 
stairways, tanks, ventilating fans, air conditioning 
equipment or similar equipment required to maintain 
and operate the building; 

B. Fire or parapet walls required by law; 

The project proposes a building height 
of 26’, with a chimney and parapet 
walls on the western half of the 
building that would exceed the height 
limit. 
 
The project is proposing to provide a 
chimney that would extend above the 
height limit, which is considered a 
height exception that may exceed the 
height limit per Section 19.40.020. 
 
The project is also proposing to 
provide parapet walls (low protective 



Design Review Board Staff Report 
Harrison-Csanadi (MF 1197) 

May 19, 2016 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 

C. Skylights chimneys, smokestacks or utility 
towers; 

D. Flagpoles, antennas, radio masts, risers and 
similar structures. 
 

wall or railing along the edge of a 
raised structure such as a roof or 
balcony) that extend 42” above the 
roof deck on the western portion of 
the building.  The height exceptions 
provided in Section 19.40.020 may 
include the proposed parapet walls.   

Residential development shall provide a minimum of 
300 sq. ft. of usable open space per dwelling unit 
(Section 19.50.010). 

The two units would require at least 
600 sq. ft. of open space.  616 sq. ft. 
of open space would be provided at 
grade for the two units, with an 
additional 1,049 sq. ft. of open space 
provided on a roof deck.  

Sixty percent (60%) of the required usable open 
space shall be provided at grade (Section 
19.50.020). 

The two units would require at least 
360 sq. ft. of open space at grade.  
616 sq. ft. of open space would be 
provided at grade.  

Residential landscape requirements are as follows 
(Section 19.50.040): 

A.  Not less than fifty percent of the required front 
yard and street side yard setbacks shall be 
landscaped and permanently maintained. The 
remainder of the required yard may be used for 
driveways and walkways. 
 

B.  Landscaping shall be provided within the parking 
area or immediately abutting it. 

 
 
 
C.  There shall be a minimum four-foot landscaped 
area between the structure an any parking located in 
front of the structure. 

D.  There shall be a minimum three-foot-wide 
landscaped area between the parking area and each 
side lot line when parking is located between the 
structure and the street. 

 

 
A. The SMU/RO Zone does not 

designate a front yard.  However, 
the applicant has maximized the 
yard off of Ocean Lane to provide 
landscaping in any area not used 
for driveways or walkways.   

B. Landscaping immediately abuts 
the driveways, and the driveways 
would be comprised of permeable 
paver and flagstone for aesthetic 
appeal. 

C. Parking is located within garages 
and not in front of the structures. 

 

D. Approximately 6-7’ of landscaping 
would locate between the 
driveways and the side lot lines. 

Commercial landscaping: not less than 15% of total 
site shall be landscaped and maintained (Section 
19.50.030(A)). 

No commercial use is required or 
proposed.  However, the project does 
propose 1,113 sq. ft. of 
pervious/landscaped areas (27.8% of 
the site).   

Required parking spaces for multiple-family 
residential in the C/MU-2 Zone (there are no specific 
parking requirements provided for the SMU/RO 
Zone, so the base C/MU-2 Zone requirements would 
apply):  1.5 spaces per dwelling unit.   

The project proposes three parking 
spaces for the two units, which would 
comply with the 1.5 parking space per 
unit requirement.   



Design Review Board Staff Report 
Harrison-Csanadi (MF 1197) 

May 19, 2016 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: 

Surrounding Areas Surrounding Zoning Surrounding 
Land Use 

North SMU/RO (Seacoast Mixed-Use/Residential Overlay) Residential 
South SMU/RO (Seacoast Mixed-Use/Residential Overlay) Residential 
East C/MU-2 (Seacoast Comm. & Mixed-Use) Commercial 
West PF (Public Facility) Beach 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:  
The project is categorically exempt pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines Section 15303 (New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures).   

 
COASTAL JURISDICTION:   

The project is located in the Appeal Jurisdiction of the California Coastal Commission as 
indicated on the Local Coastal Program Post Certification and Appeal Jurisdiction Map and, as 
such, is appealable to the California Coastal Commission under Section 30603(a) of the 
California Public Resources Code and IBMC Section 19.87.160.   
 
Attachments: 

1. Plans 
2. Design Review Checklist 

 
 
c: file MF 1197 







NORTH

1ST. LEVEL FLOOR PLAN SCALE 1/4"= 1'-0"

Scale

Date Sheet

Revision/Issue

Project Name and Address

No. Date

Drawing Name

issued for CDP submission1 2/01/16

CDP Corrections2 4/07/16

3

1ST.  LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

A1.0



NORTH

2ND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN SCALE 1/4"= 1'-0"

Scale

Date Sheet

Revision/Issue

Project Name and Address

No. Date

Drawing Name

issued for CDP submission1 2/01/16

CDP Corrections2 4/07/16

3

2ND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

A1.1



NORTH

ROOF/ ROOF DECK PLAN SCALE 1/4"= 1'-0"

Scale

Date Sheet

Revision/Issue

Project Name and Address

No. Date

Drawing Name

issued for CDP submission1 2/01/16

CDP Corrections2 4/07/16

3

ROOF / ROOF DECK PLAN

A1.2



Scale

Date Sheet

Revision/Issue

Project Name and Address

No. Date

Drawing Name

issued for CDP submission1 2/01/16

CDP Corrections2 4/07/16

3

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A2.0

NORTH SIDE ELEVATION SCALE 1/4"= 1'-0"

WEST/BEACH ELEVATION SCALE 1/4"= 1'-0"

GENERAL NOTE:
THE BUILDING HEIGHT IS

MEASURED PER IBMC 19.04.400
THE HEIGHT SHALL BE MEASURED
FROM THE AVERAGE LEVEL OF

THE HIGHEST AND LOWEST POINT
OF THAT PORTION OF THE
BUILDING SITE (AT EXISTING
GRADE)COVERED BY THE

BUILDING OR STRUCTURE TO THE
HIGHEST POINT OF THE BUILDING

OR STRUCTURE.

2



Scale

Date Sheet

Revision/Issue

Project Name and Address

No. Date

Drawing Name

issued for CDP submission1 2/01/16

CDP Corrections2 4/07/16

3

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A2.1

SOUTH SIDE ELEVATION SCALE 1/4"= 1'-0"

EAST/OCEAN LANE ELEVATION SCALE 1/4"= 1'-0"

GENERAL NOTE:
THE BUILDING HEIGHT IS

MEASURED PER IBMC 19.04.400
THE HEIGHT SHALL BE MEASURED
FROM THE AVERAGE LEVEL OF

THE HIGHEST AND LOWEST POINT
OF THAT PORTION OF THE
BUILDING SITE (AT EXISTING
GRADE)COVERED BY THE

BUILDING OR STRUCTURE TO THE
HIGHEST POINT OF THE BUILDING

OR STRUCTURE.

2









812 OCEAN LANE    IMPERIAL BEACH, CA. 92008

MWELO CALCULATIONS
DATE

APN 625-330-28-00
4-8-2016

6/8/2016
4/8/2016

HYDROZONE 1:  Inline Drip Tubing - W Exposure/Full Sun
Low Water Requirement Shrubs (0.2 ETo)
Total Area: 99 sq.ft.

LEGEND

Water Conservation Notes:
1. Water Use Calculations have been prepared as a part of this plan package.

Contractor is responsible for obtaining a copy of these documents.
2. Contractor shall be responsible for setting irrigation watering schedules as required to

meet plant requirements and weather conditions while meeting all local water use
restrictions.  Under no circumstance shall plant material be allowed to die due to
under/over-watering.

HYDROZONE 2: Inline Drip Tubing - N&E Exposure/Shaded
Low Water Requirement Shrubs (0.2 ETo)
Total Area: 202 sq.ft.

Total pervious landscape area: 646 sf.

HYDROZONE 3: No Irrigation
Decomposed Granite/Flagstone (0.0 ETo)
Total Area: 345 sq.ft.

Irrigation Notes:
1. Irrigation system shall be designed and installed to avoid runoff, seepage, low head

drainage, over spray or other similar conditions onto adjacent property, non-irrigated
areas, walks, drives, roadways or structures.  Contractor shall be responsible for
ensuring these conditions are met.

2. Contractor shall install a remote controller with rain shutoff device. Controller and rain
shutoff device shall be installed per manufacturers specifications.

3. Contractor shall install backflow prevention as required by local codes.
4. Contractor shall install an isolation shutoff valve at the irrigation point of connection.
5. Contractor shall install a pressure reducer at point of connection should street

pressure exceed 80psi.
6. Contractor shall install below grade inline drip irrigation for all planting areas. Drip

line shall provide even distribution of water to entire root zone of all plantings. Inline
drip tube shall provide 0.6 gph at spacing of 12" o.c. in all directions.

7. Contractor shall install control valves with drip filter and pressure reducer capable of
flows as low as 0.5 gpm.

Note:
California Landscape Technologies is responsible for MWELO
calculations only and is not responsible for site layout, grading,
planting or irrigation design, design review or installation.
All calculations are based on planting design and layout provided
by SD Architects and dated 3/22/16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
625-330-27-00

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 2 STORY 2 UNIT CONDOMINIUM RESIDENCE 812 OCEAN LANE IMPERIAL BEACH, CA APN: 625-330-28-00

AutoCAD SHX Text
island

AutoCAD SHX Text
u/c beverage fridge

AutoCAD SHX Text
d/w

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" fridge

AutoCAD SHX Text
prep sink

AutoCAD SHX Text
uppers

AutoCAD SHX Text
drawers

AutoCAD SHX Text
pot drawers

AutoCAD SHX Text
trash recycle

AutoCAD SHX Text
outdoor gas  firepit

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0" x 8' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" range with micro/ vent above

AutoCAD SHX Text
33" sink

AutoCAD SHX Text
trash

AutoCAD SHX Text
uppers

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCEAN  BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCEAN LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POR. LOT  4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT  6

AutoCAD SHX Text
(BEACH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
625-330-16-00

AutoCAD SHX Text
808 OCEAN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
816 OCEAN LANE



NORTH

COLORED
SITE PLAN

SCALE 1/4" =1'-0"

Scale

Date Sheet

Revision/Issue

Project Name and Address

No. Date

Drawing Name

issued for CDP submission1 02/01/16

CDP Corrections2 04/07/16

3

COLORED SITE PLAN



WEST/BEACH
ELEVATION

SCALE 3/16" =1'-0"

Scale

Date Sheet

Revision/Issue

Project Name and Address

No. Date

Drawing Name

issued for CDP submission1 02/01/16

CDP Corrections2 04/07/16

3

COLORED ELEVATIONS

NORTH/SIDE
ELEVATION

SCALE 3/16" =1'-0"

EAST/OCEAN LANE
ELEVATION

SCALE 3/16" =1'-0" SOUTH/SIDE
ELEVATION

SCALE 3/16" =1'-0"

WINDOW FRAME COLOR HARDIE PANEL COLOR HARDIE SIDING/STUCCO COLOR EXTERIOR STONE BASE



DRC 160009 Page 1 of 6 
DESIGN REVIEW COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST 

Citywide Design Criteria 
MF 1197 Applicant: Harrison-Csanadi Project Address: 812 Ocean Lane 

C = Compliance  N/C = Non Compliance  N/A = Not Applicable C N/C N/A 

A.  RELATIONSHIP OF BUILDINGS TO SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA 
1. The site should be planned to accomplish a desirable transition with the

streetscape, and to provide for adequate planting, pedestrian movement, and 
parking areas. 

X 

2. Site planning should provide landscaped setbacks in scale with
buildings, an inviting streetscape, usable open space areas, and buffering 
between properties. 

X 

3. Parking areas should be treated with decorative elements, such as,
building wall extensions, plantings, trellises, surface patterns, berms or other 
innovative means to largely screen parking areas from view from public ways. 

X 

4. Whenever the natural or existing topography contributes to the amenity
and utility of a proposed project, it should be preserved in a manner which 
enhances and accentuates the project.  Modifications to the topography will be 
considered only when it can be determined that they will contribute to the 
amenity and utility of the project. 

X 

5. Architectural styles should be made compatible or integrated with
adjacent buildings by such means as screens, site breaks, colors and 
materials. 

X 

6. Attractive landscape transition to surrounding properties should be
provided. 

 X 

7. Harmony in design elements, including texture, lines, and masses are
required.  Monotony shall be avoided.  Contrasting design elements should be 
repeated where appropriate in a harmonious manner.  For example, vertical 
elements contrast with general horizontal lines and should be used where 
appropriate to make a strong statement. 

X 

8. The height, bulk, mass and scale of each building should be compatible
with its site and buildings expected to remain or be developed in the 
surrounding area.  Monotony of architectural design is not encouraged. 

X 

9. A project proposed in an area deemed to be in a state of decline or
blight infestation should be developed in a manner, which will establish and 
improve the aesthetic quality and character of the area. 

X 

B.  BUILDING DESIGN, COLORS, AND MATERIALS 
1. Evaluation of appearance of a project shall be based on the quality of its

design and relationship to existing or future surroundings.  Inappropriate, 
incompatible designs shall be avoided. 

X 

2. Existing and proposed structures on the same project site should be
architecturally and functionally integrated. 

X 

3. Innovative and imaginative design and architecture should be
encouraged, and inappropriate and monotonous design should be avoided. 

X 

4. Variations of building details, form, line, colors and materials, and setting
should be employed to create visual interest. 

X 

ATTACHMENT 2



DRC 160009  Page 2 of 6 
DESIGN REVIEW COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST 

Citywide Design Criteria 
MF 1197  Applicant: Harrison-Csanadi Project Address: 812 Ocean Lane 
 
C = Compliance  N/C = Non Compliance  N/A = Not Applicable 

 
C 

 
N/C 

 
N/A 

 

 

     5.  Monotony of design in single or multiple building projects should be 
avoided.  Variation of detail, form, and siting should be used to provide visual 
interest.  In multiple building projects, variable siting of individual buildings may 
be used to prevent a monotonous appearance.  Variation in wall plan, roof line 
and direction, materials and color may be used to prevent a monotonous 
appearance in buildings.  Wall plan variation is recommended to reduce scale 
and bulk and may often be simple provided by building projections, bay 
windows, and balconies.  Color and landscape materials may be used to 
accent the variation.     

X  
  

     6.  Window trim, pop-outs, dormers, bay windows, and other features are 
encouraged to provide exterior variation in wall plan and materials. 

X  
  

     7.  New building components, such as windows, doors, eaves, and 
parapets, shall have good proportions and relationship to one another and with 
wall masses. 

X  
  

     8.  The architectural theme employed on a particular building should 
normally be executed on all exterior surfaces. 

X  
  

     9. In any design in which the structural frame is exposed to view, materials 
and finishes should be selected for architectural harmony or enhancements of 
the theme, as well as aesthetic quality, durability, and ease of maintenance.   

X  
  

    10.  Exterior colors which are harmonious and contribute to the aesthetic 
quality of the project should be selected. 

X  
  

    11.  Colors shall be harmonious yet color contrast or contrasting tone is 
encouraged to emphasize architectural detail (see examples in Planning 
Department).  Fluorescent paints and garish colors should be avoided. 

X  
  

    12.  Materials and colors should be varied where appropriate to provide 
architectural interest.  However, material and color combinations should be 
repeated where necessary to provide contrast and harmony (visual order) to 
the building.  The number of materials should not exceed what is required for 
contrast and accent or architectural features and may generally be limited to 
three. 

X  
  

    13.  Building materials should not stop abruptly at corners but continue from 
front to side elevations. 

X  
  

    14.  Parapet walls/mansard roofs should not stop at short distances on side 
elevations, but should continue to visually unify all building elevations, as 
appropriate. 

X  
  

    15.  Blank walls should be avoided by the use of windows, variation of 
surface plan and materials, and use of shrubbery or trees as landscape 
screening. 

X  
  

    16.  Mechanical equipment, including solar collectors and panels, or other 
utility hardware on roof, ground, or buildings should be screened from public 
view with materials harmonious with the building, or they should be located so 
as not to be visible from any public ways. 

X  
  

    17.  Metal fixtures, trims, and devices, exposed to the ocean environment 
are subject to abnormally high corrosion and are discouraged.  

X  
  



DRC 160009  Page 3 of 6 
DESIGN REVIEW COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST 

Citywide Design Criteria 
MF 1197  Applicant: Harrison-Csanadi Project Address: 812 Ocean Lane 
 
C = Compliance  N/C = Non Compliance  N/A = Not Applicable 

 
C 

 
N/C 

 
N/A 

 

 

    18.  Continued good appearance depends upon the extent and quality of 
maintenance.  The choice of materials and their use, together with the types of 
finishes and other protective measures, should be conducive to easy 
maintenance and upkeep.   

X  
  

    19.  Materials and finishes should be selected for their durability and wear 
as well as for their beauty.  Property measures and devices should be 
incorporated for protection against the elements, neglect, damage and abuse.   

X  
  

 
C.  LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS AND EXTERIOR LIGHTING 
      Landscape elements included in this criteria consist of all forms of planting 
and vegetation, ground forms, rock groupings, water patterns, and all visible 
construction except buildings and utilitarian structures. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     1.  An inviting atmosphere should be created in pedestrian oriented areas 
through the use of landscaping, walls, fencing, seating, plazas, statues, 
fountains, and other design features.     

X  
 

 
 

     2.  Grades of walks, parking spaces, terraces, and other paved area should 
provide an inviting and stable appearance for walking and, if seating is 
provided, for sitting. 

X  
  

     3.  Landscape treatment should be provided to enhance architectural 
features, strengthen vistas and important axis, and provide shade, privacy and 
buffering, soften large surfaces and paved areas, and accent points of interest.  
Where practical, existing trees and drought tolerant plants should be preserved 
and included in the planning and design of the site. 

X  
 

 
 

     4.  Unity of design should be achieved by repetition of certain plant varieties 
and other materials, and by correlation with adjacent developments, where 
appropriate. 

X  
 

 
 

     5.  Plant material should be selected for interest in its structure, texture, and 
color and for its ultimate growth.   

X  
  

     6.  In locations where plants will be susceptible to injury by pedestrian or 
motor traffic, or other environmental hazards, they should be protected by 
appropriate curbs, tree guards, or other devices.   

X  
 

 
 

     7.  Service and storage yards, trash collection areas, exterior work areas, 
and other places which tend to be unsightly, should be screened by use of 
walls, fencing, planting, or by combinations of these. 

X  
  

     8.  In areas where general planting does not prosper, other materials such 
as fences, walls, trellises and pavings of wood, brick, stone, gravel, and 
cobbles, should be used.  Carefully selected plants should be combined with 
such materials where possible.  Materials should be harmonious with building 
materials. 

X  
  

   9.  All plant materials should be selected, arranged, and installed in 
accordance with sound horticultural and landscape architectural practices per 
landscape and irrigation plans. 

X  
 

 
 



DRC 160009  Page 4 of 6 
DESIGN REVIEW COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST 

Citywide Design Criteria 
MF 1197  Applicant: Harrison-Csanadi Project Address: 812 Ocean Lane 
 
C = Compliance  N/C = Non Compliance  N/A = Not Applicable 

 
C 

 
N/C 

 
N/A 

 

 

 10.  Color and texture of landscape elements should be coordinated with color 
and texture of building materials.  Coarse textures and darker or brighter colors 
may be used where appropriate to reduce perceived distance and size.  Fine 
textures and light or greyed colors may be used for the opposite effect where 
appropriate. 

X  
  

    11.  Miscellaneous structures (i.e., structures other then buildings: sign 
posts, railings, etc.) and street furniture located on private property should be 
designed to be integrated with, or harmonious with, the architectural building 
and landscape design proposed for the site.  Materials should be durable and 
compatible with buildings and surroundings in color and scale. 

  X 

    12.  Exterior lighting should be designed to enhance the architecture of the 
building and landscape and shall be restrained in color and brightness.  Light 
standards and fixtures shall be architecturally compatible and scaled to the 
buildings with consideration for energy efficiency.      

X  
  

 
D.  SIGN CRITERIA 
      (The same criteria applicable to wall signs shall apply to monument signs.)  
Project, as conditioned 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

     1.  Signs should be designed as supportive elements to land use.  They 
should be used primarily to identify businesses, professional offices and public 
and quasi-public facilities.    

 
 

 
 X 

     2.  Signs should be compatible with the nature, scale, character, and 
design of the locale and land uses they serve.  

 
 X 

     3.  Signs should be part of the architectural concept.  Size, color, lettering, 
locations, and arrangement shall be harmonious with the building design, and 
shall be compatible with approved signs on adjoining buildings.  Signs shall 
have good proportion. 

 
 
 X 

     4.  Colors should be used harmoniously and with restraint.  Lighting should 
be harmonious with the design.  If external spot or floodlighting is used, it shall 
be arranged so that light source is shielded from view. 

 
 
 X 

     5.  Identification and directory signs should manifest a high degree of 
artistic order and taste, as well as legibility.  

 
 X 

     6.  Signs should be characterized by restraint.  Where practical and 
practicable, artistic graphics and fine art displays should be used in lieu of 
"commercial" signs. 

 
 
 X 

     7.  Signs should place considerable emphasis upon color, harmony, size, 
shapes, letters, materials and character.  

 
 X 

 
 E.  CIRCULATION AND PARKING   

 
 

 
 

 
 

     1.  It is recommended that parking areas be screened from view by the use 
of landscaping, walls, buildings, or other innovative and decorative concepts. 

X  
  

     2.  Parking areas and trafficways should be enhanced with landscaped 
spaces containing trees or tree groupings which shall be adequately irrigated 
and maintained.  Shrubs should be used only where they will not obscure 
vision. 

 
X 

 
  



DRC 160009  Page 5 of 6 
DESIGN REVIEW COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST 

Citywide Design Criteria 
MF 1197  Applicant: Harrison-Csanadi Project Address: 812 Ocean Lane 
 
C = Compliance  N/C = Non Compliance  N/A = Not Applicable 

 
C 

 
N/C 

 
N/A 

 

 

     3.  The placement of trees in parkways or paved areas is encouraged.   
 X 

     4.  Vine covered trellises should be provided where appropriate to provide 
shading and buffering of open parking areas, particularly where tree planting is 
not provided. 

  
 X 

     5.  Parking bays located between the building and the street should be 
separated from buildings by landscaped areas or protected walkways. 

 
 

 
 X 

     6.  The mass of large parking areas should be improved through the 
employment of landscaping, textural variation, or structural interruption (i.e., 
walls and trellises).  Variation of paving material, texture and color is 
recommended where pedestrian and vehicular areas overlap.  The use of 
stamped concrete, stone, brick or granite pavers, exposed aggregate, colored 
concrete or other methods to divide or improve the effect of large expanses of 
pavement is encouraged. 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

     7.  Onsite circulation shall be designed to promote adequate security, police 
and fire protection; and, to facilitate postal delivery, moving, trash collection 
and trades services. 

X  
  

     8.  The layout of offstreet parking areas and onsite circulation systems 
should place emphasis on: 

 A) Convenience and proximity to the units served. 

X  
  

 B) Safety. X  
  

 C) Screening and separation of buffering from common uses areas, 
residential units and recreation areas. 

X  
  

    9.  Directional signs and graphics should be used to promote public safety 
and convenience.    

 
 

 
 

 
X 

    10.  Loading, unloading, and delivery service operations should be 
preplanned.  Parking layouts should clearly indicate that these operations 
would not adversely affect customer parking or access. 

 
 

 
 X 

    11.  The plans of major commercial centers shall be responsive to the 
physical requirements of public transportation and should provide the requisite 
pedestrian ways, bus stops, benches, and shelter. 

 
 

 
 

 
X 

    12.  Secure bicycle parking facilities are encouraged.       
 X 

    13.  Public or commercial parking areas should be designed for 
convenience and, where feasible, should be directly accessible from two 
streets, or a street and an alley. 

  
 X 

    14.  Pedestrian ways within commercial parking areas should be protected 
from vehicular movements by landscaped areas, curbs, or posts. 

  
 

 
X 

    15.  In multiple family developments, it shall be considered undesirable to 
locate off street parking areas between the buildings and the street.  In cases 
where this design solution is utilized by the Architectural Design Review 
Advisory Committee, the parking areas should be screened from view.  
Parking shall be considered between buildings and streets where it does not 
detract from otherwise exceptional design and neighborhood amenities. 

 
X 

 
 

 
 



DRC 160009  Page 6 of 6 
DESIGN REVIEW COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST 

Citywide Design Criteria 
MF 1197  Applicant: Harrison-Csanadi Project Address: 812 Ocean Lane 
 
C = Compliance  N/C = Non Compliance  N/A = Not Applicable 

 
C 

 
N/C 

 
N/A 

 

 

    16.  It is recommended that all parking or maneuvering areas which are 
perpendicular to building walls be separated by landscaped areas. 

 
 

 
 X 

 
F.  MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ENVIRONMENT 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     1.  Multiple family dwelling developers should place cardinal emphasis on 
the protection of residential privacy.  Privacy requires sensitive structural and 
landscaping design, and effective sound-proofing.  It is also dependent upon 
the selection of proper building, screening, and landscaping materials. 

X  
  

     2.  The site development and design of multi-family development should be 
coordinated with that of existing or potential adjoining and adjacent 
development.  The project design should be consistent with the standards of 
good site planning and spatial relationships. 

X  
  

     3.  The landscape of a multi-family dwelling should be oriented towards the 
establishment and maintenance of a high order of on and off site 
environmental and aesthetic quality. 

X  
  

     4.  The design of all multiple units should promote good circulation, 
adequate exterior lighting and noise protection.  The said design should 
minimize hazards, and optimize energy conservation.  Solar orientation should 
be considered to reduce heating requirements.   

X  
  

     5.  Each building site upon which a multi-family project is developed shall 
provide landscaping and usable open space.  The space developed to 
landscaping may be improved with textured flooring, fountains, ponds, kiosks, 
and sculpture, as well as plant material. 

X  
  

     6.  Where practicable, large multi-family developments should provide a 
variety of building sizes and arrangements. 

 
 

 
 X 

     7.  Multiple-family dwelling development shall provide their residents private 
and/or common open space.  Private open space may take the form of patios, 
balconies, courtyards (atria), or gardens.  The establishment of game rooms, 
children's play areas, meeting rooms, and roof gardens should be encouraged 
where appropriate. 

X  
  

     8.  Usable open space required by the zoning ordinance should be 
distributed throughout the project site. 

X  
  

     9.  Noise effects on and from all common and private open space should be 
buffered by fences, walls, and/or barriers, which block the line-of-site of the 
noise source. 

X  
  

    10.  Indoor-outdoor integration can be promoted in projects by the use of 
large windows and sliding glass doors in conjunction with patios, balconies, 
and courtyards.  The said windows and doors, however, should be effectively 
shuttered or draped in order to prevent substantial night-time energy losses. 

X  
  

   11.  Common open space should be provided in large areas if feasible.  
Large areas of open space can be imaginatively landscaped, well utilized, and 
economically maintained. 

X  
  

 


	5-19-2016 DRB Regular Agenda
	1-21-2016 Draft Minutes
	051916 MF 1197 Harrison-Csanadi DRB Staff Report
	Attachment 1 - MF 1197 Harrison-Csanadi Plans 041516
	MWELO PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	MWELO PLAN



	Attachment 2 - 051916 MF 1197 Harrison-Csanadi DRB Checklist



